
 
 
 

AGENDA  
 
 
Meeting: Southern Area Planning Committee 

Place: The Guildhall, Market Place, Salisbury, Wiltshire, SP1 1JH 

Date: Thursday 6 November 2014 

Time: 6.00 pm 

 

 
Please direct any enquiries on this Agenda to David Parkes, of Democratic Services, 
County Hall, Bythesea Road, Trowbridge, direct line (01225) 718220 or email 
david.parkes@wiltshire.gov.uk 
 
Press enquiries to Communications on direct lines (01225) 713114/713115. 
 
This Agenda and all the documents referred to within it are available on the Council’s 
website at www.wiltshire.gov.uk  
 

 
Membership: 
 
Cllr Richard Britton 
Cllr Richard Clewer 
Cllr Brian Dalton 
Cllr Christopher Devine (Vice-Chairman) 
Cllr Jose Green 
Cllr Mike Hewitt 
 

Cllr George Jeans 
Cllr Ian McLennan 
Cllr Ian Tomes 
Cllr Fred Westmoreland (Chairman) 
Cllr Ian West 
 

 

 
Substitutes: 
 
Cllr Trevor Carbin 
Cllr Terry Chivers 
Cllr Ernie Clark 
Cllr Tony Deane 
Cllr Dennis Drewett 
Cllr Peter Edge 
Cllr Magnus Macdonald 
 

Cllr Helena McKeown 
Cllr Leo Randall 
Cllr Ricky Rogers 
Cllr John Smale 
Cllr John Walsh 
Cllr Bridget Wayman 
Cllr Graham Wright 

 

 
 



AGENDA 

 

 Part I 

 Items to be considered when the meeting is open to the public 

 

1   Apologies for Absence  

 To receive any apologies or substitutions for the meeting. 

 

2   Minutes (Pages 1 - 2) 

 To approve and sign as a correct record the minutes of the meeting held on 16 
October 2014.  

 

3   Declarations of Interest  

 To receive any declarations of disclosable interests or dispensations granted by 
the Standards Committee. 

 

4   Chairman's Announcements  

 To receive any announcements through the Chair. 

 

5   Public Participation and Councillors' Questions  

 The Council welcomes contributions from members of the public. 
 
Statements 
Members of the public who wish to speak either in favour or against an 
application or any other item on this agenda are asked to register in person no 
later than 5.50pm on the day of the meeting. 
 
The Chairman will allow up to 3 speakers in favour and up to 3 speakers against 
an application and up to 3 speakers on any other item on this agenda. Each 
speaker will be given up to 3 minutes and invited to speak immediately prior to 
the item being considered. The rules on public participation in respect of 
planning applications are detailed in the Council’s Planning Code of Good 
Practice. 
 
Questions  
To receive any questions from members of the public or members of the 
Council received in accordance with the constitution which excludes, in 
particular, questions on non-determined planning applications. Those wishing to 
ask questions are required to give notice of any such questions in writing to the 
officer named on the front of this agenda (acting on behalf of the Corporate 



Director) no later than 5pm on Thursday 30 October 2014. Please contact the 
officer named on the front of this agenda for further advice. Questions may be 
asked without notice if the Chairman decides that the matter is urgent. 
 
Details of any questions received will be circulated to Committee members prior 
to the meeting and made available at the meeting and on the Council’s website. 
 

 

6   Rights of Way Modification Order (Pages 3 - 98) 

 

7   Planning Appeals (Pages 99 - 100) 

 To receive details of completed and pending appeals. 

 

8   Planning Applications  

 To consider and determine planning applications in the attached schedule. 

 8a 13/05402/FUL - Harnham Telephone Repeater Station 

  A site visit will be arranged for this item for the day of the meeting.  

 8b 14/07720/OUT - 3 Westfield Close, Durrington, SP4 8BY (Pages 113 - 
122) 

 8c 14/07911/FUL - 15 Ridgmount, Durrington, SP4 8AH (Pages 123 - 130) 

 

9   Urgent Items  

 Any other items of business which, in the opinion of the Chairman, should be 
taken as a matter of urgency   
 

 

 Part II 

 Items during whose consideration it is recommended that the public 
should be excluded because of the likelihood that exempt 

information would be disclosed 
 

 
 



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 4



 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

SOUTHERN AREA PLANNING COMMITTEE 
 

 
DRAFT MINUTES OF THE SOUTHERN AREA PLANNING COMMITTEE MEETING 
HELD ON 16 OCTOBER 2014 AT ALAMEIN SUITE - CITY HALL, MALTHOUSE 
LANE, SALISBURY, SP2 7TU. 
 
Present: 
 
Cllr Richard Britton, Cllr Richard Clewer, Cllr Peter Edge (Substitute), 
Cllr Jose Green, Cllr Mike Hewitt, Cllr George Jeans, Cllr Ian McLennan, 
Cllr John Smale (Substitute), Cllr Ian Tomes, Cllr Fred Westmoreland (Chairman) and 
Cllr Ian West 
 
Also  Present: 
 
Cllr Julian Johnson, Cllr Bill Moss and Cllr Bridget Wayman 
  

 
99 Apologies for Absence 

 
Apologies for absence were received from Councillors Brian Dalton and Chris 
Devine. 
 
Councillor Devine was substituted by Councillor John Smale. 
 
Councillor Dalton was substituted by Councillor Peter Edge.  
 
 

100 Minutes 
 
The minutes of the meeting held on 25 September were presented for 
consideration, and it was, 
 
Resolved: 
 
That subject to the inclusion of Councillor Ian McLennan as having given 
his apologies for the meeting, and a correction to Minute 97a to read 
“Councillor Richard Britton requested his dissent to the approval be 
recorded”, to approve as a correct record and sign the minutes. 
 
Councillor Britton was also permitted to make a brief statement clarifying his 
dissent to the decision and why he felt it necessary to have his vote recorded. 
 
 
 

Page 1

Agenda Item 2



 
 

 

 
 
 

101 Declarations of Interest 
 
There were no declarations. 
 
 

102 Chairman's Announcements 
 
There were no announcements. 
 
 

103 Public Participation and Councillors' Questions 
 
The Chairman explained the meeting procedure to the members of the public 
and noted the rules on public participation. 
 
 

104 Planning Appeals 
 
The Committee received details of the appeal decisions as detailed in the 
agenda. 
 
 

105 Planning Applications 
 
Attention was drawn to the late list of representations and observations, which 
would be subsequently published. 
 
 

106 14/06864/FUL - Land to the west of Bake Farm Buildings, Salisbury Road, 
Coombe Bissett, SP5 4JT 
 
Public Participation 
Mr Aster Crawshaw spoke in objection to the application. 
Mrs Jennifer Epworth spoke in objection to the application. 
Mrs Linda Buckley spoke in objection to the application. 
Mr Richard Jowett spoke in support of the application. 
Mr Angus MacDonald, applicant, spoke in support of the application. 
Mr Andrew Fido, agent, spoke in support of the application. 
Mr Richard Burden, National Association for Areas of Outstanding Natural 
Beauty (AONB), spoke in objection to the application. 
Cllr Gerald Bundy, Coome Bissett Parish Council, spoke in objection to the 
application. 
 
The Area Development Manager presented the report which recommended that 
permission be approved. Key issues were stated to include the visual impact on 
the adjoining Area of Outstanding Natural Beauty (AONB) and the surrounding 
area and on the existing agricultural land. National and local planning policy 
regarding solar farms was provided along with details of the mitigation 
measures to be included as part of the application. 
 

Page 2



 
 

 

 
 
 

Members of the Committee then had the opportunity to ask technical questions 
of the officer. Details were sought on the scale of the proposed development, 
the number of inverter stations on the site, and the quality grade of the land. 
 
Members of the public then had the opportunity to present their views to the 
Committee, as detailed above. 
 
The local Unitary Division Member, Councillor Julian Johnson, then spoke 
regarding the application. Although he took a neutral view, he highlighted the 
concerns raised by the local community and the importance that in accordance 
with policy the Committee needed to determine whether the need for renewable 
energy would be overriding the need to protect the environment should the 
application be approved. 
 
A debate followed, where members discussed the level of impact of the 
proposals on the site itself and in particular on the AONB, and whether the 
scale of the proposals could be sufficiently mitigated through the screening 
proposed at short and longer distances. It was also raised that the quality grade 
of the land was unclear, and whether it was at a level where additional uses 
other than arable farming was encouraged. Members also raised whether the 
site would become permanent in future, although it was noted that grazing could 
continue on the site if solar panels were installed. 
 
At the conclusion of debate, it was, 
 
Resolved: 
 
To REFUSE the application for the following reason: 
 
The site lies in open countryside within the setting of, and visible from, 
the Cranbourne Chase and West Wiltshire Downs Area of Outstanding 
Natural Beauty.  The proposal, by reason of its siting, scale and resulting 
prominence in views both from, and to, the Area of Outstanding Natural 
Beauty, would not achieve the fundamental aim of the Area of 
Outstanding Natural Beauty which is to conserve its landscape and 
natural beauty.   
 
Although the proposal includes mitigation in the form of new hedge 
planting, this is considered insufficient to reduce the adverse impacts on 
the Area of Outstanding Natural Beauty.  Those adverse impacts are, in 
particular, the visual impact of the closely arranged ranks of solar arrays 
which spread across a significant area of farmland on higher ground, and 
which would ‘read’ as a man-made, almost industrial intrusion in the 
otherwise natural landscape from which the Area of Outstanding Natural 
Beauty can be experienced and which can be experienced from the Area 
of Outstanding Natural Beauty.   
 

This is contrary to Core Policy 51 of the emerging Wiltshire Core Strategy 
which specifically refers to the relevance of the setting of Areas of 
Outstanding Natural Beauty, the spirit of ‘saved’ Policy C4 of the 

Page 3



 
 

 

 
 
 

Salisbury District Local Plan, and Central Government planning policy set 
out in the National Planning Policy Framework (paragraph 115). 
 

The Committee took a recess from 1930-1935. 

 
 

107 14/07557/FUL - 10 Ventry Close, Salisbury, SP1 3ES 
 
Public Participation 
Mr Tony Allen spoke in objection to the application. 
Mrs Elizabeth Bec spoke in objection to the application. 
Mr Bob Law spoke in objection to the application. 
Mr Damian Thursby spoke in support of the application. 
Mr Peter Hughes spoke in support of the application. 
Cllr John Lindley, Chairman of the Salisbury City Council Planning and 
Transportation Committee, spoke in objection to the application. 
 
The Area Development Manager presented a report which recommended that 
planning permission be approved. Key issues were stated to include the 
principal of development, particularly in lights of permitted development rights 
for some development in the garden of the existing property, the impact on 
residential amenity and the siting, scale and design of the proposal. It was 
confirmed that trees of sufficient height to screen views from the neighbouring 
Tower Mews development, were included as part of the application details. 
 
Members of the Committee then had the opportunity to ask technical questions 
of the officer, and clarification was sought on the height and orientation of the 
application. 
 
Members of the public then had the opportunity to present their views to the 
Committee, as detailed above. 
 
The local Unitary Division Member, Councillor Bill Moss, then spoke in objection 
to the application, stating that the proposed plot was not suitable for another 
dwelling despite the understandable personal position of the applicants. 
 
A debate followed, where the Committee discussed whether another dwelling 
could be accommodated on the site, with particular attention to the amount of 
amenity space that would be available, or whether although the current 
applicants might find it acceptable, this constituted overdevelopment of the 
area. The character of properties in the area was assessed, with it noted that 
although all the properties were of a unique design, each had been designed to 
fit a distinct familial style, and it was considered whether the proposed dwelling 
was in character with that style.  
 
At the end of debate, it was, 
 
Resolved: 
 
To REFUSE  the application for the following reasons: 

Page 4



 
 

 

 
 
 

 
1. The proposed development would be located in the side garden of an 

existing two storey property in Ventry Close.  The site slopes and is 
elevated above road level, and is prominent being close to the entry 
point to the Close.   

 
The proposal, by reason of the relatively large size of the proposed 
dwelling on the site, its positioning close to the roadside boundary, and 
the relatively small areas within the site proposed to provide amenity 
space/garden, would amount to an over-development of the site to the 
detriment of the character and appearance of the wider Ventry Close 
estate.  Furthermore, the proposed dwelling, by reason of its design 
and appearance, would be out of keeping with the grain and style of 
established development in Ventry Close.  

 
The development would therefore be contrary to ‘Saved’ Policies G2 
and D2 of the Salisbury District Local Plan and the guidance in the 
National Planning Policy Framework - Para 9, 56, 58 and 64.  

 
2. The development would be contrary to saved Policy R2 of the Salisbury 

District Local Plan, as provision for public open space has not been 
made.  

 
Informative: Reason 2 above can be overcome by the applicant entering 
into a Section 106 Agreement in respect of Policy R2.  
 
 

108 14/06726/OUT - Farmer Giles Farmstead, Teffont, Salisbury, Wiltshire, SP3 
5QY 
 
Public Participation 
Mr Tony Allen spoke in support of the application. 
Cllr David Wood, Chairman of Teffont Parish Council, spoke in support of the 
application. 
 
The Area Development Manager presented the report which recommended that 
permission be delegated for approval subject to the applicant entering into 
planning obligation for the delivery of a financial contribution towards local 
recreation provision, and subject to the following conditions. Key issues were 
stated to include the principal of development and the sustainability of the 
proposal, which officers considered an improvement on the existing situation 
with many defunct buildings. 
 
Members of the Committee then had the opportunity to ask technical questions 
of the officer. Details were sought on the size of the building plot and scale of 
the proposal, but it was stated as an outline application many details were not 
yet finalized, although it was around 600m². Other queries included the activity 
at the site, and whether the Farmer Giles attraction was ever in operation or had 
be wound down completely, and the number of lodges and caravans that could 
use the wider site. It was also confirmed that the application had been referred 

Page 5



 
 

 

 
 
 

to Committee under delegated powers as the applicant was a relative of a 
Wiltshire Councillor.  
 
Members of the public then had the opportunity to present their views to the 
Committee as detailed above. 
 
The local Unitary Division Member, Councillor Bridget Wayman, then spoke in 
objection to the application, stating that the principle of constructing a new large 
house in the countryside was against policy, and the trade off of the unsightly 
car park and a few now unused buildings being removed was not sufficient. She 
also stated that the original permission for the lodges and caravans had been 
contingent upon the Farmer Giles business being in operation and the land 
should be restored as it was no longer operating.  
 
A debate followed, where the Committee discussed whether the employment 
land at the site was unviable and suitable for conversion to residential status, 
and whether the continued existence of multiple disused properties closer to the 
road meant that the improvement to the landscape from some removals 
sufficiently enhanced the area as a result. In response to queries it was also 
stated that the land was classified as a brownfield site, with attendant permitted 
development rights. Members also discussed the views of Wiltshire Councils 
Spatial Planning team and any traffic implications. 
 
 At the conclusion of debate, it was, 
 
Resolved: 
 
To REFUSE the application for the following reasons: 
 
1. The application site lies in open countryside and an Area of 

Outstanding Natural Beauty.  Within the countryside there is effectively 
a presumption against new residential development except in limited 
circumstances not relevant to this case.  This presumption is in the 
interests of sustainability and amenity.  It follows that as a matter of 
principle the proposal comprises unacceptable development.   
 
In terms of harm, the proposal would introduce a house and its 
curtilage with inevitable domestic paraphernalia, and these would be 
visually intrusive and alien in such an isolated and rural location, 
distant from other residential properties or any settlement.  By reason 
of their visibility and alien appearance, the house and its curtilage 
would detract from the wider appearance of the landscape, neither 
conserving nor enhancing its status as an Area of Outstanding Natural 
Beauty.  There are no exceptional circumstances which would outweigh 
the harm to the countryside and landscape.    
 
The proposal is, therefore, contrary to the principles of the settlement 
strategy set out in Policy CP1 of the South Wiltshire Core Strategy (and 
Policies CP1 and CP2 of the emerging Wiltshire Core Strategy) and 
‘Saved’ Policies C2 and C4 of the Salisbury District Local Plan, and the 

Page 6



 
 

 

 
 
 

guidance in the National Planning Policy Framework – paragraphs 109 
and 115.   

 
2. The development would be contrary to saved Policy R2 of the Salisbury 

District Local Plan, as provision for public open space has not been 
made.  

 
Informative: Reason 2 above can be overcome by the applicant entering 
into a Section 106 Agreement in respect of Policy R2.  
 
 

109 Urgent Items 
 
There were no urgent items. 
 

 
 
 
 

(Duration of meeting:  6.00  - 9.15 pm) 
 

The Officer who has produced these minutes is Kieran Elliott of Democratic Services, 
direct line (01225) 718504, e-mail kieran.elliott@wiltshire.gov.uk 

 
Press enquiries to Communications, direct line (01225) 713114/713115 

 
 

Page 7



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 8



CM09591/F 1 

WILTSHIRE COUNCIL   
 
SOUTHERN AREA PLANNING COMMITTEE 
 
6 NOVEMBER 2014 
 

 
 

WILDLIFE AND COUNTRYSIDE ACT1981 
 

THE DEFINITIVE MAP AND STATEMENT FOR THE AMESBURY RURAL 
DISTRICT COUNCIL AREA DATED 1952 AS MODIFIED UNDER THE 
PROVISIONS OF THE WILDLIFE AND COUNTRYSIDE ACT 1981 

 
The Wiltshire Council Milston 16 (Part) Rights of Way Modification Order 2014 

 
 

Purpose of Report 
 
1. To: 

 
(i) Consider the evidence and duly made objections and representation 

relating to the above Order.  
 
(ii) Recommend that the Order be submitted to the Secretary of State for 

the Environment, Food and Rural Affairs with the recommendation that 
it be confirmed.   

 
Relevance to the Council’s Business Plan 
 
2. Working with the local community to provide a rights of way network fit for 

purpose. 
 
Background 
 

3. In 2006 Wiltshire County Council made an Order under Section 53 of the 
Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981 to: 

 
(a) ‘delete the footpath leading from Brigmerston corner, Church Road, 

Milston through the farmyard to RUPP 16 Milston leading to Durrington 
with a width of two metres’; and 

 
(b) add ‘the footpath leading from Brigmerston corner, Church Road, 

Milston and then running parallel to Barn House and Cottage on right 
then crossing diagonally left to join RUPP 16 leading to Durrington with 
a width of two metres.’  

Page 9

Agenda Item 6



CM09591/F 2 

4. The Order was duly advertised and an objection and representations were 
made to it. The objections and representations received were considered by 
the Southern Area Planning Committee on 16 January 2014. A copy of the 
Agenda item is attached at Appendix 1. The Area Planning Committee 
resolved that the Order be forwarded to the Secretary of State for 
Environment, Food and Rural Affairs for determination with the 
recommendation that the Order be confirmed with the modification to the 
Order map to show the Restricted Byway to be added by a broken black line 
and small arrowheads. 

 
5. The Order and associated papers were submitted to the Secretary of State for 

determination but the Order was returned to the Council as the Secretary of 
State has taken the view that the use of a solid black line to depict the new 
route and a broken line to depict the route to be deleted is considered to be 
misleading and a fundamental error which is fatal to the validity of the Order.  

 
6. As a consequence, to correct the drawing error the Order was remade with a 

revised plan (see Appendix 3) on the 15 July 2014 in accordance with 
Statutory Instrument 1993/12 Wildlife and Countryside (Definitive Maps and 
Statements) Regulations. The Order was duly advertised and a representation 
in support of the Order was made by Mr R W Henman on behalf of himself 
and his wife and objections made by Mr Andrew Smith and Mrs Samantha 
Smith. Copies of the objections and representation are attached at 
Appendix 2 to this report. 

 
Main Considerations for the Council 
 

7. The main issues to be taken into consideration are set out in paragraphs 4 – 
27 of the Decision Report contained as Appendix B to the Southern Area 
Committee report attached here as Appendix1. 

  
8. The judgement given by the Court of Appeal in R v Secretary of State for the 

Environment ex parte Burrows and Simms (1991) 2 QB 354 held, in effect that 
if evidence comes to light to show that a mistake had been made in drawing 
up the definitive map, such a mistake can be corrected in either of the three 
ways envisaged in Section 53(3)(c) of the Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981. 

 
9. There is a consistent portrayal of the claimed route as part of the local road 

network on the maps described in the Decision Report. This supports the 
application applied for by Jancis Henman and triggers the duty of the Council 
to modify the definitive map and statement accordingly by adding to the 
definitive map and statement as a Restricted Byway on the claimed route and 
the deletion of the section of Milston 16 currently shown through Brigmerston 
farmyard.  The historical evidence is entirely supported by the significant 
amount of user evidence also submitted with the application. No statements 
and plans have been deposited under Section 31(6) of the Highways Act 1980 
in this area. 

 
10. No mapping evidence has been discovered by Council officers to confirm that 

the section of Milston 16 currently shown on the definitive map through 
Brigmerston farmyard is correct.  Taking the map evidence into consideration 
with all the other evidence relating to Milston 16, as the legislation requires 
the Council to do, officers believe that the section of Milston 16 shown through 
the farmyard should be deleted from the definitive map. 

Page 10



CM09591/F 3 

11. The Order was advertised in accordance with the regulations and the 
attached objections and representation have been received. The Order must 
now be forwarded to the Secretary of State for determination. The test that the 
Secretary of State will apply in deciding whether or not to confirm the Order in 
relation to the proposed additional Restricted Byway made under Section 
53(3)(c)(i) is: 

 
Does a right of way subsist on the balance of probabilities? This 
requires that there is clear evidence in favour of public rights and no 
evidence to the contrary. 

 
12. In considering the part of the Order concerning deleting that part of Milston 16 

through the farmyard made under Section 53(3)(c)(iii), in accordance with the 
decision of the Court of Appeal in Trevelyan v Secretary of State for the 
Environment, Transport and the Regions (2001) it will fall to the Secretary of 
State to start with the initial presumption that the way did exist. The standard 
of proof required to show that the inclusion of the right of way on the definitive 
map was incorrect is the balance of probabilities. But evidence of some 
substance had to be put in the balance if it was to outweigh the initial 
presumption that the way had been correctly included. 

 
 The Objections to the Order 
 
13. On 18 August 2014 Mr Andrew Smith of the Barn House wrote to the Council: 
 
 “Whilst I have objected previously both by letter and email I write to comply 

with the notice dated 15 July. Let me once again place on record an objection 
to the proposal to divert the footpath from the existing delineated route as 
designated on the definitive map. 

 
In the notice you have requested grounds to the objection and the following 
are the basis for these.  
1. Points raised in my letter of 23 August 2006 
2. Evidence of aerial photography of the 70’s and 80’s which clearly indicates 

the path is routed and utilized via the stables which is the present route as 
confirmed by the definitive map. 

3. The intrusive effect on the family home of the proposed alteration. 
4. The failure of the Council to undertake any discussion with ourselves since 

we purchased the Properties in 2002 concerning the proposed change.’’  
 
 Comment on the Objection 
 
14. Mr Smith is not contesting the physical presence of a route adjacent to his 

property along the line of the proposed Restricted Byway as he has 
acknowledged its existence in his letter dated 23 August 2006.  He states ‘an 
overgrown and often muddy track adjacent to our Property’ and ‘the proposed 
re-routing is directly along a path which becomes waterlogged during the 
winter months and overgrown during the summer.’  

 
 
 
 

Page 11



CM09591/F 4 

15. Mr Smith has not produced any evidence to challenge the use of the 
proposed Restricted Byway given by the 42 local people who have completed 
witness evidence forms testifying to daily use of the route dating back to 1916.  
Many of the people who completed user evidence forms commented on a 
former owner of Barn House frequently observing them from his garden using 
the claimed right of way and never being challenged whilst doing so. 

 
16. The aerial photographs show the physical features that existed at the time the 

photographs were taken and it simply is not possible to deduce from them 
where the public have walked, or the nature of that use. 

 
17. In ‘A Guide to definitive maps and changes to public rights of way’ produced 

by Natural England the legal considerations to be taken into account in 
matters relating to definitive map modification orders are made clear. The 
guide, which is targeted at members of the public, states: 

 
 ‘Definitive map modification orders are about whether rights already exist, not 

about whether they should be created or taken away. The suitability of a way 
for users who have a right to use it, or the nuisance that they are alleged to 
cause, or to be likely to cause, are therefore irrelevant. So also is the need for 
public access, locally, if the order alleges that public rights do not exist. 

 
 Evidence is the key 
 The definitive map is a legal recognition of existing public rights to walk, ride 

and use vehicles. As such, any proposal to modify it by means of a definitive 
map modification order to add a right of way has to be judged by the legal 
test: ‘Do the rights set out in the order already exist?.’ If they do, then the map 
must be modified, regardless of any effect on anyone’s property interests, or 
whether or not the routes physically exist at the present time on the ground. 
Similarly, if the evidence in support of the order proves to be sufficient, and 
the test is not satisfied, then the map remains as it is, however desirable it 
may seem for the public to have those additional rights. 

  
 Evidence is also the key where the proposal is to remove some or all of the 

rights recorded on a way already shown on the map. In this case it must 
demonstrate clearly that a right of way, of that status, did not exist when it was 
first shown on the definitive map, and that an error was made.’ 

 
18. On the 18 August 2014 Mrs Samantha Smith wrote to object to the Order for 

the following reasons: 
 

‘1. The failure of the Council to undertake any discussion with ourselves since 
we purchased the Properties in 2002 concerning the proposed change. 

 
2. Points raised in my letter of 9 October 2013 including the request to 

change the right of way from uninhabited land to running directly past our 
house and cottage as well as Vandalism. 

 
3. Right to Respect for Private and Family Life under Human rights Act 1998 

including the infringement and ‘protection of our property. 
 
 

Page 12



CM09591/F 5 

4. Wiltshire County Council lead by you to protect one parties interests over 
another. This has been seen over the last 12 years where The Smith 
Family residing at The Barn House and Cottage having had attempts at 
bullying regarding Milston Restricted Byway 16.’ 

 
Comment on the objection 
 

19. The comments made in paragraphs 14–17 above are relevant to this 
objection. 
 

 Representation in support of the Order 
 
20. Mr R W Henman wrote on 1 August on behalf of himself and his wife in 

support of the Order: 
 
 ‘For the record, you should be aware that we both fully support this revised 

order as we believe it accurately reflects the correct route. There has been 
considerable correspondence and evidence produced over the last seven 
years or so in support of this route, and there is therefore little point in 
repeating it all now. 

 
 We have lived here for almost twenty three years and it is well known that this 

is the route of the byway. We particularly object to the residents of Barn 
House unilaterally deciding that it suits them to change the route of this right 
of way. We also understand that the residents have been abusive to ramblers 
on this public land and if this is correct, we find their behaviour to be totally 
unacceptable.’ 

 
 Comment on the Representation 
 
21. Mr and Mrs Henman have provided evidence of actual use of the Restricted 

Byway to be added to the definitive map and have long knowledge of the 
area. 

 
Safeguarding Considerations 
 
22. Considerations relating to safeguarding anyone affected by the making and 

confirmation of an Order made under Section 53(2) of the Wildlife and 
Countryside Act 1981 are not considerations permitted within the Act.  Any 
such Order must be confirmed based on the relevant evidence alone. 

 
Public Health Implications 
 
23. Considerations relating to any public health implications of the making and 

confirmation of an Order made under Section 53(2) of the Wildlife and 
Countryside Act 1981 are not considerations permitted within the Act.  Any 
such Orders must be confirmed based on the relevant evidence alone. 

 
 
 
 
 
 Page 13



CM09591/F 6 

Environmental Impact of the Recommendation 
 
24. Considerations relating to the environmental impact of the making and 

confirmation of an Order made under Section 53(2) of the Wildlife and 
Countryside Act 1981 are not considerations permitted within the Act.  Any 
such Orders must be confirmed based on the relevant evidence alone. 

 
Risk Assessment 
 
25. Considerations relating to risks or safety of the impact of the making and 

confirmation of an Order under Section 53(2) of the Wildlife and Countryside 
Act 1981 are not considerations permitted within the Act.  Any such Orders 
must be confirmed based on the relevant evidence alone.  

 
Financial Implications 
 
26. It is considered that with this case, and the need to test the evidence of 

witnesses from both sides, that a Public Inquiry is unavoidable. However, the 
decision whether to determine an Order by written representations, a Hearing 
or a Public Inquiry rests with the Secretary of State. 

 
27. The Council has a duty in law to support Orders where it is considered that on 

the balance of probability public rights subsist or the definitive map 
erroneously shows a right of way as it is believed the evidence shows for that 
section of Milston 16 which runs through Brigmerston farmyard. Budgetary 
provision has been made for carrying out this duty, including covering the cost 
of any Public Inquiry or hearing that may be convened to determine the Order.  

 
Legal Implications 
 
28. Wiltshire Council has a legal duty to keep the definitive map and statement 

under continuous review and therefore there is no risk associated with the 
Council pursuing this duty correctly. 

 
Options Considered 
 
29. That: 
 

(i)  The confirmation of the Order is supported as made. 
 

(ii)  The confirmation of the Order is supported with modifications. 
 

(iii)  The confirmation of the Order is objected to. 

Page 14



CM09591/F 7 

Reasons for Recommendation 
 
30. Under Section 53(3)(c)(i) the Surveying Authority is not required to prove 

beyond all reasonable doubt that rights exist. The burden of proof lies on the 
‘balance of probability’, i.e. that it is more likely than not that the rights exist. 
An Order may be made under this section where rights can be ‘reasonably 
alleged to subsist’; however, at the confirmation of an Order a more stringent 
test applies, that public rights ‘subsist’. The wording for Section 53(3)(c)(iii) is 
different, as the Surveying Authority has to be satisfied that there ‘is’ no public 
right of way shown on the definitive map. 

 
31. The earliest map examined which officers believe shows the route sought to 

be added to the definitive map is Andrews’ and Dury’s map of Wiltshire dated 
1773. Whilst it may be argued that this map is on such a small scale, 2 inches 
to 1 mile, that it is not possible to identify with any degree of accuracy the 
route of a particular way, when compared with the later mapping evidence, in 
particular the large scale Ordnance Survey maps, a picture of the road layout 
of this area becomes clear. There is a consistent portrayal of the claimed 
additional route as part of the local road network on the maps described in the 
Decision Report attached at Appendix B to the Southern Area Planning 
Committee report attached here as Appendix 1.This supports the application 
applied for by Jancis Henman and triggers the duty of the Council to modify 
the definitive map and statement accordingly by adding to the definitive map 
and statement as a Restricted Byway the claimed route and the deletion of 
the section of Brigmerston 16 through the farmyard. The historical evidence is 
entirely supported by the significant amount of user evidence also submitted 
with the application. No statements and plans have been deposited under 
Section 31(6) of the Highways Act 1980 for the land over which the claimed 
Restricted Byway runs. 

 
32. No mapping evidence has been discovered by Council officers to confirm that 

the section of Milston 16 currently shown on the definitive map through 
Brigmerston farmyard is correct. Taking the map evidence into consideration 
with all the other evidence relating to Milston 16 the Council has considered, 
officers believe that the section of Milston 16 shown through the farmyard 
should be deleted from the definitive map. 

 
Recommendation 
 
33. That the Wiltshire Council Milston 16 (Part) Rights of Way Modification Order  

2014 is forwarded to the Secretary of State for Environment, Food and Rural 
Affairs for determination with the recommendation that the Order be 
confirmed.  

 
 
Tracy Carter 
Associate Director Waste and Environment 
 
Report Author: 
Barbara Burke  
Definitive Map and Highway Records Team Leader 
 

 Page 15



CM09591/F 8 

The following unpublished documents have been relied on in the preparation 
of this Report: 
 

Correspondence with Parish Council, user groups, other interested bodies 
and members of the public 

 
Appendices: 
 
 Appendix 1 - Southern Area Committee Report – 16 January 2014  
 Appendix 2 - Objections and representations to the Order 
 Appendix 3 - Order Map dated 15 July 2014 

Page 16



CM09525/F 1 

APPENDIX 1 
 
WILTSHIRE COUNCIL  AGENDA ITEM NO. 
 
SOUTHERN AREA PLANNING COMMITTEE 
 
16 JANUARY 2014 
 

 
WILDLIFE AND COUNTRYSIDE ACT1981 

 
THE DEFINITIVE MAP AND STATEMENT FOR THE AMESBURY RURAL 
DISTRICT COUNCIL AREA DATED 1952 AS MODIFIED UNDER THE 
PROVISIONS OF THE WILDLIFE AND COUNTRYSIDE ACT 1981 

 
The Wiltshire County Council (Sheet SU 14 NE) Rights of Way Modification 

Order No. 11 2006 (Milston restricted Byway No. 16) 
 
 

Purpose of Report 
 
1. To: 

 
(i) Consider the evidence and duly made objections and representation 

relating to the above Order.  
 
(ii) Recommend that the Order be submitted to the Secretary of State for 

the Environment, Food and Rural Affairs with the recommendation that 
it be confirmed subject to correcting an error on the order map by 
amending the symbol to the way being added to reflect the statutory 
prescribed symbol for a Restricted Byway.   

 
Background 
 

2. On 13 August 2001 Jancis Henman, on behalf of The Friends of Milston and 
Brigmerston, applied to Wiltshire County Council for an Order to be made 
under Section 53 of the Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981 to: 

 
(a) ‘delete the footpath leading from Brigmerston corner, Church Road, 

Milston through the farmyard to RUPP 16 Milston leading to Durrington 
with a width of two metres’; and 

 
(b) add ‘the footpath leading from Brigmerston corner, Church Road, 

Milston and then running parallel to Barn House and Cottage on right 
then crossing diagonally left to join RUPP 16 leading to Durrington with 
a width of two metres.’  

 
3. The applicant had incorrectly identified the status of the route described in 

paragraph 2(a) above as a footpath.  In 2001 this section of right of way was 
shown on the definitive map as a Road Used as a Public Path (RUPP). The 
RUPP was reclassified as a Restricted Byway on 2 May 2006. The map 
attached at Appendix A shows the application routes to be deleted and 
added. Page 17



CM09525/F 2 

4. The application was supported by 41 user evidence forms completed by 42 
people who claim to have used the route described in paragraph 2(b) above 
since 1916. 

 
5. The Council has a duty to investigate applications of this nature and to make 

an Order if, on the balance of probability, it is reasonably alleged that public 
rights exist over the claimed route and to delete ways if evidence comes to 
light that there is no public right of way of any description on the definitive 
map. 

 
6. Officers considered all the evidence available to them and concluded in a 

Decision Report attached at Appendix B that the route referred to in 
paragraph 2(a) above ought to be deleted and an Order to add a Restricted 
Byway on the route claimed in paragraph 2(b) above ought to be added to the 
definitive map. 

 
7. On 2 August 2006 a Modification Order was made under Sections 53(3)(c)(i)  

and 53(3)(c)(iii) of the Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981, seeking to bring the 
changes referred to in paragraph 6 above into effect. The Order was duly 
advertised, two objections were received to the making of the Order from 
Mr A R H Smith of The Barn House on behalf of himself and family and from 
Mr B Riley.  A representation was made to the making of the Order from 
Defence Estates.  Copies of the objections and representation are attached at 
Appendix C. 

 
Main Considerations for the Council 
 

8. The main issues to be taken into consideration are set out in paragraphs 4 – 
27 of the Decision Report attached at Appendix B. 

  
9. The judgement given by the Court of Appeal in R v Secretary of State for the 

Environment ex parte Burrows and Simms (1991) 2 QB 354 held, in effect that 
if evidence comes to light to show that a mistake had been made in drawing 
up the definitive map, such a mistake can be corrected in either of the three 
ways envisaged in Section 53(3)(c) of the Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981. 

 
10. There is a consistent portrayal of the claimed route as part of the local road 

network on the maps described in the Decision Report. This supports the 
application applied for by Jancis Henman and triggers the duty of the Council 
to modify the definitive map and statement accordingly by adding to the 
definitive map and statement as a Restricted Byway on the claimed route and 
the deletion of the section of Milston 16 currently shown through Brigmerston 
farmyard.  The historical evidence is entirely supported by the significant 
amount of user evidence also submitted with the application. No statements 
and plans have been deposited under Section 31(6) of the Highways Act 1980 
in this area. 

 
11. No mapping evidence has been discovered by Council officers to confirm that 

the section of Milston 16 currently shown on the definitive map through 
Brigmerston farmyard is correct.  Taking the map evidence into consideration 
with all the other evidence relating to Milston 16, as the legislation requires 
the Council to do, officers believe that the section of Milston 16 shown through 
the farmyard should be deleted from the definitive map. Page 18



CM09525/F 3 

12. The Order was advertised in accordance with the regulations and the 
attached objections and representation have been received. The Order must 
now be forwarded to the Secretary of State for determination. The test that the 
Secretary of State will apply in deciding whether or not to confirm the Order in 
relation to the proposed additional Restricted Byway made under Section 
53(3)(c)(i) is: 

 
Does a right of way subsist on the balance of probabilities? This 
requires that there is clear evidence in favour of public rights and no 
evidence to the contrary. 

 
13. In considering the part of the Order concerning deleting that part of Milston 16 

through the farmyard made under Section 53(3)(c)(iii), in accordance with the 
decision of the Court of Appeal in Trevelyan v Secretary of State for the 
Environment, Transport and the Regions (2001) it will fall to the Secretary of 
State to start with the initial presumption that the way did exist. The standard 
of proof required to show that the inclusion of the right of way on the definitive 
map was incorrect is the balance of probabilities. But evidence of some 
substance had to be put in the balance if it was to outweigh the initial 
presumption that the way had been correctly included. 

 
 The Objections to the Order 
 
14. On 23 August 2006 Mr Andrew R H Smith of the Barn House wrote to the 

Council: 
 
 ‘My family and I object, most forcefully, to the proposed re routing of the 

Restricted Byway. The occupants of the land, through which the Byway 
presently runs, locked and fenced the access and route some months ago 
and signs were erected forcing the walking public to make their way via an 
overgrown and often muddy track adjacent to our Property..... 

 
 In general terms the property through which the Byway runs was used 

continuously by the public from the moment we moved into our property in 
October 2001 until four months ago..... It should also be appreciated that the 
proposed re routing is directly along a path which becomes waterlogged 
during the winter months and overgrown during the summer. 

 
 Given that the Byway is presently routed mostly along a made up track, the 

re-routing would in fact be over a less direct and more inconvenient route and 
therefore the reason for the re-route is unclear and questionable.’  

 
 Comment on the Objection 
 
15. Mr Smith is not contesting the physical presence of a route adjacent to his 

property along the line of the proposed Restricted Byway as he has 
acknowledged its existence in his letter dated 23 August.  He states ‘an 
overgrown and often muddy track adjacent to our Property’ and ‘the proposed 
re-routing is directly along a path which becomes waterlogged during the 
winter months and overgrown during the summer.’  

 
 

Page 19



CM09525/F 4 

16. Mr Smith states that he and the family moved into Barn House in October 
2001.  Gates were erected across the route of the proposed Restricted Byway 
in effect giving the appearance that it is within the curtilage of Barn House; 
however, the land over which the route crosses is not within the registered 
title of the property.  Mr Smith has not produced any evidence to challenge 
the use of the proposed Restricted Byway given by the 42 local people who 
have completed witness evidence forms testifying to daily use of the route 
dating back to 1916.  Many of the people who completed user evidence forms 
commented on a former owner of Barn House frequently observing them from 
his garden using the claimed right of way and never being challenged whilst 
doing so. 

 
17. Mr Smith has not produced any evidence of use of the route through 

Brigmerston farmyard. 
 
18. In ‘A Guide to definitive maps and changes to public rights of way’ produced 

by Natural England the legal considerations to be taken into account in 
matters relating to definitive map modification orders are made clear. The 
guide, which is targeted at members of the public, states: 

 
 ‘Definitive map modification orders are about whether rights already exist, not 

about whether they should be created or taken away. The suitability of a way 
for users who have a right to use it, or the nuisance that they are alleged to 
cause, or to be likely to cause, are therefore irrelevant. So also is the need for 
public access, locally, if the order alleges that public rights do not exist. 

 
 Evidence is the key 
 The definitive map is a legal recognition of existing public rights to walk, ride 

and use vehicles. As such, any proposal to modify it by means of a definitive 
map modification order to add a right of way has to be judged by the legal 
test: ‘Do the rights set out in the order already exist?.’ If they do, then the map 
must be modified, regardless of any effect on anyone’s property interests, or 
whether or not the routes physically exist at the present time on the ground. 
Similarly, if the evidence in support of the order proves to be sufficient, and 
the test is not satisfied, then the map remains as it is, however desirable it 
may seem for the public to have those additional rights. 

  
 Evidence is also the key where the proposal is to remove some or all of the 

rights recorded on a way already shown on the map. In this case it must 
demonstrate clearly that a right of way, of that status, did not exist when it was 
first shown on the definitive map, and that an error was made.’ 

 
19. Mr Riley wrote on 25 August 2006 to object to the status of the additional right 

of way being added to the definitive map as a Restricted Byway. Mr Riley 
believes that ‘on the balance of probability, the correct status is a byway open 
to all traffic.’  Mr Riley goes on to explain that: 

 
‘In all probability, many (perhaps most) former RUPPs will have been used by 
MPVs (including tractors and traction engines) before 1 December 1930, and 
in some cases mainly by MPVs in the five years before 2 May 2006. 
 

Page 20



CM09525/F 5 

The principal evidence implying MPV use of Milston 16 before 1 December 
1930 (a tree lined lane until at least 1954) consists of its classification on four 
Bartholomew’s half-inch maps, which are available for inspection. 
 
1.  Survey Atlas of England & Wales, Plate 64, 1904: ‘Other Driving roads’ 
2.  Reduced Survey for Tourists & Cyclists, Sheet 29, 1911 ‘Secondary 

Roads (Good)’ 
3.  Reduced Survey for Tourists & Cyclists, Sheet 29, 1920 ‘Motoring 

Roads: Secondary Roads’ 
4. Revised Contoured Map, Sheet 29, 1929: ‘Motoring Roads: Secondary 

Roads’ 
 
Comment on the objection 
 

20. Section 67 of the Natural Environment and Rural Communities Act 2006 ends 
certain unrecorded public rights of way.  Section 67(1) states: 
 
‘An existing public right of way for mechanically propelled vehicles is 
extinguished if it is over a way which, immediately before commencement- 
 
a) was not shown in a definitive map and statement, or 
b) was shown in a map or statement only as a footpath, bridleway or restricted 
byway. 
 
But this is subject to subsections (2) to (8).  Officers are not aware of any of 
the exceptions in subsection (3) relating to public rights applying to the section 
of additional Restricted Byway.  No evidence of actual vehicular use of the 
route has been submitted to the Council. Section 67 of the Act is attached to 
the Decision Report at Appendix C to this report. 

 
 Representations in support of the Order 
 
21. Mr R D Watts, Senior Land Agent at the Defence Estates, wrote on 

14 September 2006 to support the making of the Modification Order which is 
the subject of this report. Mr Watts stated: 

 
 ‘I would make the point that the Byway has never run through our land and 

when I used to work at our Durrington office, on an almost daily basis for 
approximately 8 years, I would walk the route in front of what is now 
Mr Smith’s house along the correct route. There had not been any problems 
with this route until the ownership of The Barn House changed hands. It was 
at this time that difficulties began to arise over access along the byway as it 
was obvious that the new owner wished to prevent access in front of their 
property and it was at this time that the local inhabitants began to go through 
the MOD land, hence the reason why we put the signs up. 

 
 As access along the byway has been restricted by the erection of gates, I 

assume you will be taking enforcement action against Mr Smith. 
 
 Concerning the condition of the paddock along which the right of way runs, 

the tenant has strimmed the nettles, which I understand is your responsibility, 
which now allows unimpeded access along the correct route. 

 Page 21



CM09525/F 6 

 I really fail to see how Mr Smith can object; indeed I am somewhat confused 
as to how it is on the definitive map because the byway has never taken this 
route.’ 

 
 Comment on the Representation 
 
22. The evidence in support of the Order provided by Mr Watts on behalf the 

Defence estates is welcome. 
 
Safeguarding Considerations 
 
23. Considerations relating to safeguarding anyone affected by the making and 

confirmation of an Order made under Section 53(2) of the Wildlife and 
Countryside Act 1981 are not considerations permitted within the Act.  Any 
such Order must be confirmed based on the relevant evidence alone. 

 
Public Health Implications 
 
24. Considerations relating to any public health implications of the making and 

confirmation of an Order made under Section 53(2) of the Wildlife and 
Countryside Act 1981 are not considerations permitted within the Act.  Any 
such Orders must be confirmed based on the relevant evidence alone. 

 
Environmental Impact of the Recommendation 
 
25. Considerations relating to the environmental impact of the making and 

confirmation of an Order made under Section 53(2) of the Wildlife and 
Countryside Act 1981 are not considerations permitted within the Act.  Any 
such Orders must be confirmed based on the relevant evidence alone. 

 
Risk Assessment 
 
26. Considerations relating to risks or safety of the impact of the making and 

confirmation of an Order under Section 53(2) of the Wildlife and Countryside 
Act 1981 are not considerations permitted within the Act.  Any such Orders 
must be confirmed based on the relevant evidence alone.  

 
Financial Implications 
 
27 It is considered that with this case, and the need to test the evidence of 

witnesses from both sides, that a Public Inquiry is unavoidable. However, the 
decision whether to determine an Order by written representations, a Hearing 
or a Public Inquiry rests with the Secretary of State. 

 
28. The Council has a duty in law to support Orders where it is considered that on 

the balance of probability public rights subsist or the definitive map 
erroneously shows a right of way as it is believed the evidence shows for that 
section of Milston 16 which runs through Brigmerston farmyard. Budgetary 
provision has been made for this duty. 

 
 
 
 Page 22



CM09525/F 7 

Options Considered 
 
29. That: 
 

(i)  The confirmation of the Order is supported as made. 
 

(ii)  The confirmation of the Order is supported with modifications. 
 

(iii)  The confirmation of the Order is objected to. 
 
Reasons for Recommendation 
 
30. Under Section 53(3)(c)(i) the Surveying Authority is not required to prove 

beyond all reasonable doubt that rights exist. The burden of proof lies on the 
‘balance of probability’, i.e. that it is more likely than not that the rights exist. 
An Order may be made under this section where rights can be ‘reasonably 
alleged to subsist’; however, at the confirmation of an Order a more stringent 
test applies, that public rights ‘subsist’. The wording for Section 53(3)(c)(iii) is 
different, as the Surveying Authority has to be satisfied that there ‘is’ no public 
right of way shown on the definitive map. 

 
31. The earliest map examined which officers believe shows the route sought to 

be added to the definitive map is Andrews’ and Dury’s map of Wiltshire dated 
1773. Whilst it may be argued that this map is on such a small scale, 2 inches 
to 1 mile, that it is not possible to identify with any degree of accuracy the 
route of a particular way, when compared with the later mapping evidence, in 
particular the large scale Ordnance Survey maps, a picture of the road layout 
of this area becomes clear. There is a consistent portrayal of the claimed 
additional route as part of the local road network on the maps described in the 
Decision Report attached at Appendix B. This supports the application 
applied for by Jancis Henman and triggers the duty of the Council to modify 
the definitive map and statement accordingly by adding to the definitive map 
and statement as a Restricted Byway the claimed route and the deletion of 
the section of Brigmerston 16 through the farmyard. The historical evidence is 
entirely supported by the significant amount of user evidence also submitted 
with the application. No statements and plans have been deposited under 
Section 31(6) of the Highways Act 1980 for the land over which the claimed 
Restricted Byway runs. 

 
32. No mapping evidence has been discovered by Council officers to confirm that 

the section of Milston 16 currently shown on the definitive map through 
Brigmerston farmyard is correct. Taking the map evidence into consideration 
with all the other evidence relating to Milston 16 the Council has considered, 
officers believe that the section of Milston 16 shown through the farmyard 
should be deleted from the definitive map. 

 
33. The order map has a drafting error on it as the route to be added as a 

Restricted Byway is not portrayed with the statutory prescribed symbols. 
Consequently, officers recommend that the Order be submitted to the 
Secretary of State with the recommendation that the Order plan be modified 
accordingly.  

 
 Page 23



CM09525/F 8 

Recommendation 
 
34. That the Wiltshire County Council (Sheet SU14 NE) Rights of Way 

Modification Order No. 11, 2006 (Milston Restricted Byway No. 16) is 
forwarded to the Secretary of State for Environment, Food and Rural Affairs 
for determination with the recommendation that the Order be confirmed with 
the modification to the Order map to show the Restricted Byway to be added 
by a broken line and small arrowheads. 

 
 
 
Tracy Carter 
Associate Director of Environment and Leisure 
 
 
Report Author: 
Barbara Burke  
Definitive Map and Highway Records Team Leader 
 

 
The following unpublished documents have been relied on in the preparation 
of this Report: 
 

Correspondence with Parish Council, user groups, other interested bodies 
and members of the public 

 
 
Appendices: 
 
 Appendix A - Order Plan  
 Appendix B - Decision Report 
 Appendix C - Decision Report Attachments  

Page 24



Page 25



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 26



Page 27



Page 28



Page 29



Page 30



Page 31



Page 32



Page 33



Page 34



Page 35



Page 36



Page 37



Page 38



Page 39



Page 40



Page 41



Page 42



Page 43



Page 44



Page 45



Page 46



Page 47



Page 48



Page 49



Page 50



Page 51



Page 52



Page 53



Page 54



Page 55



Page 56



Page 57



Page 58



Page 59



Page 60



Page 61



Page 62



Page 63



Page 64



Page 65



Page 66



Page 67



Page 68



Page 69



Page 70



Page 71



Page 72



Page 73



Page 74



Page 75



Page 76



Page 77



Page 78



Page 79



Page 80



Page 81



Page 82



Page 83



Page 84



Page 85



Page 86



Page 87



Page 88



Page 89



Page 90



Page 91



Page 92



Page 93



Page 94



Page 95



Page 96



Page 97



Page 98



Page 99



Page 100



Page 101



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 102



Brigmerston

Tank

Sluice

Track

Dra
in

0.91m FF

Lodge

11

(disused)

10

12

South Pines

Barn House

Barn Cottage

Brigmerston

Milston Restricted Byway No. 16

1:1,250 °© Crown copyright and database rights 2014 Ordnance Survey 100049050

V
V

V

V

V
V

V V V V V V V V V V V V V V V V V V V V

A

B

© Crown copyright and database rights 2014 Ordnance Survey 100049050 
 

The precise l ine of a Right of Way can only  be determined by reference to the Definitive Map. 
This plan has been produced by transposing the Rights of Way 

as shown on the Definitive Map onto a larger scale. 
The Council can accept no responsibil ity for any error or  inaccuracy which may arise from the transposition of the Rights of Way 

shown on the Definitive Map to a different scale. 
 

 
         Prepared by JH 
        Scale 1: 1250 
        Date 10/07/2014 

MILSTON RESTRICTED BYWAY No. 16 
Key 
 
Length of restricted byway to be added: A B
   
Length of restricted byway to be deleted: A                      B 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 103



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 104



 

APPEALS   
Appeal Decisions 

 
 
Application 
Number 

 
Site 

 
Appeal 
Type 

Application 
Delegated/ 
Committee 

 
Appeal 
Decision 

 
Overturn 

 
Costs 

13/05532/OUT Land adj 
Coombe Road, 
Salisbury 

WR DEL Dismissed  Dismissed 

13/02243/FUL Land at Rear of 
the Plaza, 
Durrington 

WR DEL Dismissed   

14/02238/FUL Land at 
Paddock View, 
The Street, 
Teffont 

WR COMMITTEE Allowed O/T Allowed 

14/04819/FUL 10 Skew Bridge 
road, Salisbury 

HH DEL Allowed   

 
Outstanding Appeals 

 
 
Application 
Number 

 
Site 

 
Appeal Type 

 
Application 
Delegated/ 
Committee 

 
Overturn 

13/01493/FUL 44 Fisherton Street, 
Salisbury 

WR DEL  
 

13/02724/FUL Woodford, Middle 
Woodford, Salisbury 

WR COMMITTEE O/T 

13/04330/ADV Partridge Hill, Giles Lane, 
Landford 

WR DEL  

13/04200/FUL Lyvers Farm, East 
Grimstead 

Hearing COM O/T 

14/03436/ADV 

 
Richmond Farm, Brickworth 
Road, Whiteparish 

WR DEL  

14/04518/FUL 5 Beech Close, Porton HH DEL  

 

New Appeals 
 

 
Application 
Number 

 
Site 

 
Appeal Type 

 
Application 
Delegated/ 
Committee 

 
Overturn 

14/02018/FUL 81 Downton Road, 
Salisbury 

WR DEL  

14/07763/FUL Land adj to Orchard 
Cottage, Stapleford 

WR DEL  

 
WR  Written Representations 
HH  Fastrack Householder Appeal 
H  Hearing  
LI  Local Inquiry 
ENF     Enforcement Appeal 
 
27TH October 2014 

Page 105

Agenda Item 7



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 106



REPORT TO THE AREA PLANNING COMMITTEE Report No. 

Date of Meeting 06 November 2014 

Application Number 13/05402/FUL 

Site Address Harnham Telephone Repeater Station 

Shaftesbury Drove 

Salisbury 

SP2 8QH 

Proposal The demolition of existing telephone repeater station and 

development of two 4 bedroom and four 3 bedroom houses, with 

associated access, car parking and landscaping 

Applicant Mr Jonny Pitts 

Town/Parish Council SALISBURY CITY 

Ward SALISBURY HARNHAM 

Grid Ref 413345  128417 

Type of application Full Planning 

Case Officer  Warren Simmonds 

 
Reason for the application being considered by Committee  
 
Cllr Dalton has requested the application be considered by the Members of the Southern 
Area Committee due to local concern, design and Highway concerns. 
 
1. Purpose of Report 
 
To consider the above application and recommend to Members that the application is 
APPROVED subject to Conditions and S106 legal agreement. 
 
2. Report Summary 
 

1. Principle of the proposed development and loss of employment 
2. Impact on the character of the surrounding area 
3. Impact on the amenity of neighbours 
4. Highways considerations 
5. Tree impacts 
6. Archaeology 
7. Protected species 
8. Provision of financial contributions in respect of affordable housing and recreational 

open space 
 
 

Page 107

Agenda Item 8a



3. Site Description 
 
The application site consists of approximately 0.17ha site on which the former Telephone 
Repeater Station building (TRS) is situated, comprising a relatively large three/four storey 
scale brick built building constructed in approximately 1940 and occupying the majority of the 
ground area of the site (constituting a levelled plot of land slightly terraced into the side of 
Harnham Hill) and surrounded by hard standing on all sides save for the front (south) where 
there is a modest grassed area of frontage with sparse trees and shrubbery.  
 
The topography of the land falls from the east to the west. The levels of the site (prior to the 
construction of the existing TRS building) have been amended resulting in an earth retaining 
wall rising between approx. 0.5m and 3.6m from south to north along the eastern boundary, 
and a fall from approx. 3.5m to 1m along the northern boundary. 
 
The site is accessed from Shaftesbury Drove at the southern end. 
 
The application site is surrounded on all sides by existing residential development 
(consisting of properties on Harnwood Road to the east and north, properties accessed via 
Shaftesbury Drove to the west and south). 
 
A byway runs east/west along Shaftesbury Drove to the south of the application site. 
 
Tree preservation orders exist for trees along Shaftesbury Drove (to the south west) and to 
the north west of the application site, but none exist within the application site. 
 
4. Planning History 
 
None relevant to the current application 
 
5. The Proposal 
 
The application is for full planning permission and proposes the demolition of the TRS 
building and the development of 2 x four bedroom houses and 4 x three bedroom houses, 
with associated access, car parking and landscaping. 
 
6. Planning Policy 
 
Adopted Salisbury District Local Plan saved policies, including the saved policies listed in 
Appendix C, of the Adopted South Wiltshire Core Strategy: 
 
G1 & G2 – General Development Criteria 
D2 – Design 
C12 – Nature Conservation 
H19 – Housing Restraint Area 
TR11 – Transport 
R2 – Open space 
 
South Wiltshire Core Strategy: 

This was formally adopted at full Council on 7 February 2012 and forms part of the 

development plan for South Wiltshire.  

Core Policy 3 (Affordable Housing) 
Core Policy 5 (Employment) 
Core Policy 6 (Meeting Salisbury’s Housing Needs) 

Page 108



Core Policy 18 (Lifetime Homes Standard)  
Core Policy 19 (Water Efficiency and the River Avon Special Area of Conservation) 
 
Emerging Wiltshire Core Strategy: 

The emerging Wiltshire Core Strategy (eWCS) has now been through the independent 

public examination procedure and is expected to be fully adopted (thereby superseding the 

South Wiltshire Core Strategy) in late 2014. The policies of the eWCS therefore now carry 

significant material weight in the consideration and determination of planning applications. 

The effect of the eWCS on saved local plan policies: 

Of particular importance to the application site (currently designated as an H19 Housing 

Restraint Area) is the loss of local plan policy H19, to be replaced by eWCS Core Policy 2 

(Delivery Strategy), which in turn refers back to Core Policy 1 (Settlement Strategy). 

Additionally, saved local plan policy D2 is replaced by CP57 (Ensuring high quality design 

and place shaping), saved local plan policy C12 is deleted as national policy/legislation 

covers impact on protected species, TR11 is replaced by CP64 (Demand management), 

whereas saved local plan policy R2 is continued as a saved policy in the eWCS. 

The effect on the eWCS on adopted SWCS policies:  

With the impending adoption of the eWCS, relevant adopted SWCS policies are affected as 

follows:  

• CP3 (SWCS) is replaced by CP43 (Providing affordable homes) of the eWCS 

• CP5 (SWCS) is replaced by CP35 (Existing employment sites) of the eWCS 

• CP6 (SWCS) is replaced by CP45 (Meeting Wiltshire’s housing needs) of the eWCS 

• CP18 (SWCS) is replaced by CP46 (Meeting Wiltshire’s housing needs) of the eWCS 

• CP19 (SWCS) is replaced by CP68 (Water resources) of the eWCS 
 

Government Guidance: 

National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) March 2012, and National Planning Policy 

Guidance (NPPG) March 2014. 

7. Consultations 
 
WC Highways – No Highway objection, subject to Condition 
WC Ecologist – No comments 
WC Archaeology – No objection subject to Condition 
Wessex Water – Standard letter of advice provided 
WC Public Protection – No objection subject to Conditions 
Tree officer – No objection subject to development being carried out in accordance with the 
submitted arboricultural report 
WC Rights of Way officer – No response received 
WC Housing team – Requirement for financial contribution in respect of off-site provision of 
affordable housing, and recreational open space contribution 
Salisbury City Council – Object on grounds of overdevelopment and road safety issues 
 
 
 

Page 109



8. Publicity 
 
The application was advertised by site/press notice and neighbour consultation. 
 
Following the amendment (reduction) of the proposed scheme from eight houses to six, all 

neighbours, consultees and all other third parties who had previously expressed an interest 

were re-consulted. Thirteen representations were received from third parties in response the 

re-consultation, each was objecting to the proposed development on grounds including 

overdevelopment of the site (density), development out of character with the surrounding 

housing restraint area, Highway safety, potential obstruction of the adjacent right of way by 

parked cars associated with the proposed development, adverse impacts in respect of 

neighbour amenity (overlooking, noise), setting of adverse precedent in respect of density of 

development in the area, and insufficient off-street car parking provision. 

9. Planning Considerations 
 
9.1 Principle of the proposed development and loss of employment 

The site is within an area of housing restraint where any such proposal will be considered 
against the criteria of saved policy H19 (Housing Restraint Areas). The requirements of the 
policy are: 
 
Within Housing Restraint Areas, residential development (including the erection of new 
dwellings) will be acceptable only if the following criteria are met:  
 

I. there will be no adverse impact on the character of the settlement or neighbourhood;  
II. there is no loss of an important open space which contributes to the special character 

of the area;  
III. the loss of features such as trees, hedges and walls which contribute to the character 

of the area is kept to a minimum, and  
IV. the development will be in keeping with the character of neighbouring properties 
 
However, due consideration and appropriate material weight must be given to the emerging 
Wiltshire Core Strategy (eWCS) which has now been fully through the independent public 
examination procedure and is expected to be adopted (thereby superseding the South 
Wiltshire Core Strategy) in late 2014. The policies of the eWCS therefore now carry 
significant material weight in the consideration and determination of planning applications.  
 
Under Core Policy 1 of the eWCS, Salisbury is defined as a Principal Settlement where 
sustainable development will take place to improve the lives of all those who live and work in 
Wiltshire. The application site is identified as being within the  
 
Core Policy 2 of the eWCS sets out the underlying principles of the Delivery Strategy, 
namely to ensure that communities have a better balance of jobs, services and facilities and 
homes. Within the limits of development, as defined within the proposals maps, there is a 
presumption in favour of sustainable development at the Principal Settlements, Market 
Towns, Local Service Centres and Large Villages. 
 
Core policy 5 (SWCS) and emerging Core Policy 35 (eWCS) deal with employment land but 
relate only to the conservation of B1, B2 and B8 uses and therefore do not apply to the 
former employment use of the application site (which it is considered constituted a sui 
generis use).  
 

Page 110



It is therefore considered the proposed development, consisting of the residential 
redevelopment of a former commercial site within an otherwise residential area is acceptable 
in principle. 
 
9.2 Impact on the character of the surrounding area 
 
The existing TRS building was erected in about 1940 and is a conspicuously large brick built 
structure of three to four storey scale (relative to a domestic property) which occupies the 
majority of the site by floor area. As such the existing TRS building currently forms a 
prominently visible element of the existing character of the surrounding area. 
 
The proposed development (amended plans/6 dwelling reduced scheme) would provide two 
detached four bed dwellings at the southern end of the site, with an access from the 
southern boundary along the western side to four  further dwellings (two pairs of three bed 
semi-detached houses). 
 
The existing earth retaining wall along the eastern and northern boundaries is to be retained 
and improved as a ‘green living wall’ with additional planting, together with a concrete 
retaining wall to ensure the stability of adjoining gardens. 
 
Taking into consideration the scale, height and mass of the existing TRS building to be 

demolished which currently forms part of the existing character of the immediate and wider 

surrounding area, and the significantly reduced overall scale, mass and height (relative to 

the existing TRS building) of the proposed new dwellings, and taking into consideration the 

imminent changes in local plan policy criteria (i.e. the loss of local plan policy H19 Housing 

Restraint Areas as discussed in section 9.1 above), it is considered the scale, design, 

density, materials and layout of the proposed development would not result in undue harm to 

the existing character of the surrounding area such as warrant the refusal of the proposed 

scheme. 

9.3 Impact on the amenity of neighbours 

Several objections have been received from third parties in response the re-consultation. 

Grounds for objection included the density of development being out of character with the 

surrounding housing restraint area, Highway safety and adverse impacts in respect of 

neighbour amenity. 

The proposed development represents a significant reduction in bulk, scale and mass over 

that of the existing TRS building. The proposed two four bedroom detached dwellings at the 

southern end of the site will have south facing front elevations facing towards Shaftesbury 

drove. The closest neighbouring dwelling to the south is ‘Winsome’ which is located on a 

partial ‘island’ site with Shaftesbury Drove running along its northern boundary, and Old 

Blandford road running along the southern side (the property is accessed on the northern 

side off of Shaftesbury Drove). The closest neighbouring dwellings to the east of the 

application site are existing dwellings on Harnwood Road which back onto the boundary with 

the site. Number 60 Harnwood Road occupies the land to the north of the application site, 

whereas to the immediate west of the site is the cul-de-sac and head of Shaftesbury Drove 

with dwellings on the opposite (western) side. 

The proposed rear (east facing) elevations of the four semi-detached dwellings have no 

dormers or rooflight windows above first floor ceiling height level. In order to preserve the 

Page 111



amenity of neighbouring dwellings (in terms of overlooking) a Condition should be imposed 

to ensure no additional windows or openings are inserted into the east facing roof planes of 

these dwellings. A similar Condition, relating to the north facing (rear) roof planes of the two 

detached four bed dwellings should also be imposed in the interests of amenity of existing 

neighbouring occupiers and future occupiers of the development site. 

By reason of the separation distance and general relationship between the proposed new 
dwellings within the application site and the nearest neighbouring residential properties, it 
is considered the proposed development would not unduly disturb, interfere, conflict with 
or overlook adjoining dwellings or uses to the detriment of existing occupiers. 
 

9.4 Highway considerations 

Whilst significant concerns have been raised in third party representations with respect to 

the impacts of the proposed development on traffic generation, parking provision and 

Highway safety, the application has been thoroughly assessed by the Council’s Highways 

officer who is content the proposed development would not be prejudicial to Highway safety 

and therefore raises no Highway objection subject to a Condition that access, turning area(s) 

and parking spaces are completed in accordance with the details shown on the approved 

plans and are maintained for those purposes at all times thereafter. 

9.5 Tree impacts 

An Arboricultural Impact Assessment (Professional Tree Services Ltd, 25.10.13) was 

submitted with the application. The Council’s Tree Officer has assessed the proposed 

development and raises no objection subject to development being carried out in 

accordance with the submitted arboricultural report. 

9.6 Archaeology 

The applicant has submitted an Archaeological desk based assessment of the site. The 

Council’s Assistant Archaeologist has assessed the proposal and raises no objection subject 

to a recording Condition.  

9.7 Protected species 

The applicant has submitted a Protected Species Survey report for the existing TRS building 

and site. The ecological survey concluded that bats were not using the building and there 

was no evidence of other protected species on the site. 

The council’s Ecologist has assessed the proposed development and raises no objection. 

9.8 Provision of financial contributions in respect of affordable housing and recreational open 

space 

The applicant has confirmed their agreement to enter into a legal agreement with the Council 
to make appropriate financial provision towards the off-site provision of recreational open 
space and affordable housing. 
 
 
 

Page 112



10. Conclusion 
 
The development would be acceptable in principle, consisting of previously developed land 
within an established residential area. The proposal is considered acceptable in terms of its 
scale, design layout and materials and (subject to Conditions) would not adversely affect the 
amenity of neighbours or the existing character of the immediate and wider surrounding 
area. The proposed development would not be prejudicial to road safety and would not have 
undue impacts on ecology, archaeology or nearby trees that are subject to tree preservation 
orders. An appropriate level of financial contribution towards off-site affordable housing and 
recreational open space would be provided via a S106 legal agreement between the 
landowner and the Council in accordance with the relevant policies.  
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
That the application should be APPROVED, subject to the landowner entering into a suitable 
S.106 legal agreement to ensure/facilitate the payment of appropriate financial contributions 
in respect on off-site affordable housing provision and recreational open space provision, 
and subject to the following Conditions: 
 
 1. The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of three 

years from the date of this permission. 
 
REASON:  To comply with the provisions of Section 91 of the Town and Country 
Planning Act 1990 as amended by the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 
2004. 
 

 2. The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with the 

following approved plans: 

Drawing number A101 revision D dated Sept 13, as deposited with the local planning 

authority on 27.08.14, and 

Drawing number A1.02 revision C dated Sept 13, as deposited with the local planning 

authority on 27.08.14, and 

Drawing number A103 revision B dated Sept 13, as deposited with the local planning 

authority on 27.08.14, and 

Drawing number A104 revision B dated Sept 13, as deposited with the local planning 

authority on 27.08.14, and 

Drawing number A1.05 revision B dated Sept 13, as deposited with the local planning 

authority on 27.08.14, and 

Drawing number A201 revision A dated Aug 14, as deposited with the local planning 

authority on 27.08.14, and 

Drawing number A202 revision A dated Aug 14, as deposited with the local planning 

authority on 27.08.14. 

REASON: For the avoidance of doubt and in the interests of proper planning. 

3. No development shall commence on site until details of the external materials to be 

used for the walls and roofs of the development have been submitted to and approved 

Page 113



in writing by the Local Planning Authority. Development shall be carried out in 

accordance with the approved details. 

REASON: In the interests of visual amenity and the character and appearance of the 

area. 

4. No construction or demolition work shall take place on Sundays or Public 
Holidays or outside the hours of 07:30 to 18:00 on weekdays and 08:00 to 13:00 on 
Saturdays. No burning of waste shall take place on the site during the construction 
phase of the development. 
 
REASON: In the interests of neighbouring amenities 
 
5. No part of the development hereby permitted shall be first occupied until the 
access, turning area, parking area and passing place have been completed in 
accordance with the details shown on the approved plans. The areas shall be 
maintained for those purposes at all times thereafter. 
 
REASON: In the interests of highway safety 
 
6. A Method Statement for the protection of trees (to be retained) during 
construction works shall be submitted to the local planning authority and agreed in 
writing prior to the commencement of development. Development shall be carried 
out in accordance with the details thereby agreed. 
 
REASON: To ensure the retention and long term sustainability of retained trees in 
the interests of amenity 
 
7. Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning (General 
Permitted Development) Order 1995 (as amended by the Town and Country 
Planning (General Permitted Development) (Amendment) (No.2) (England) Order 
2008 (or any Order revoking or re-enacting or amending that Order with or without 
modification), no window(s), dormer window(s) or rooflight(s), other than those 
shown on the approved plans, shall be inserted in the rear (east facing) 
roofslope(s) of Units 6, 5, 4 or 3 the development hereby permitted. 
 
REASON:  In the interests of residential amenity and privacy. 
 
8. Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning (General 
Permitted Development) Order 1995 (as amended by the Town and Country 
Planning (General Permitted Development) (Amendment) (No.2) (England) Order 
2008 (or any Order revoking or re-enacting or amending that Order with or without 
modification), no window(s), dormer window(s) or rooflight(s), other than those 
shown on the approved plans, shall be inserted in the rear (north facing) 
roofslope(s) of Units 2 or 1 the development hereby permitted. 
 
REASON:  In the interests of residential amenity and privacy. 
 
9. Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning (General 
Permitted Development) Order 1995 (as amended by the Town and Country 
Planning (General Permitted Development) (Amendment) (No.2) (England) Order 
2008 (or any Order revoking or re-enacting or amending that Order with or without 
modification), the garages hereby permitted shall not be converted to habitable 
accommodation. 

Page 114



 
REASON:  To safeguard the amenities and character of the area and in the interest 
of highway safety. 
 
10. No works shall commence on site until an appropriate programme of building 
recording has been carried out in respect of the building concerned. This record 
shall be carried out by an archaeologist/building recorder or an organisation with 
acknowledged experience in the recording of standing buildings which is 
acceptable to the Local Planning Authority. The recording shall be carried out in 
accordance with a written specification, and presented in a form and to a timetable, 
which has first been agreed in writing with the Local Planning Authority.  
 
REASON: To secure the proper recording of the listed building. 
 
11. No development shall commence on site until a scheme for the discharge of 
surface water from the site (including surface water from the access/driveway), 
incorporating sustainable drainage details, has been submitted to and approved in 
writing by the Local Planning Authority. The development shall not be first occupied 
until surface water drainage has been constructed in accordance with the approved 
scheme.  
 
REASON: To ensure that the development can be adequately drained. 
 
12. No development shall commence on site until an investigation of the history and 
current condition of the site to determine the likelihood of the existence of 
contamination arising from previous uses has been carried out and all of the 
following steps have been complied with to the satisfaction of the Local Planning 
Authority:  
 

Step (i)            A written report has been submitted to and approved by the 

Local Planning Authority which shall include details of the 

previous uses of the site for at least the last 100 years and a 

description of the current condition of the site with regard to any 

activities that may have caused contamination.  The report shall 

confirm whether or not it is likely that contamination may be 

present on the site. 

Step (ii)            If the above report indicates that contamination may be present 

on or under the site, or if evidence of contamination is found, a 

more detailed site investigation and risk assessment should be 

carried out in accordance with DEFRA and Environment 

Agency’s “Model Procedures for the Management of Land 

Contamination CLR11” and other authoritative guidance and a 

report detailing the site investigation and risk assessment shall 

be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning 

Authority.   

Step (iii)           If the report submitted pursuant to step (i) or (ii) indicates that 

remedial works are required, full details have been submitted to 

the Local Planning Authority and approved in writing and 

thereafter implemented prior to the commencement of the 

development or in accordance with a timetable that has been 

Page 115



agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority as part of the 

approved remediation scheme. On completion of any required 

remedial works the applicant shall provide written confirmation 

to the Local Planning Authority that the works have been 

completed in accordance with the agreed remediation strategy. 

REASON:  To ensure that land contamination can be dealt with adequately prior to the 

use of the site hereby approved by the Local Planning Authority. 

 

  

 

Page 116



 

 

13/05402/FUL - Harnham Telephone Repeater Station, Salisbury, SP2 8QH 

 

 

 

 

Page 117



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 118



REPORT TO THE SOUTHERN AREA PLANNING 

COMMITTEE 

Report No. 

Date of Meeting 06/11/2014 

Application Number 14/07720/OUT 

Site Address 3 Westfield Close 

Durrington 

Wiltshire 

SP4 8BY 

Proposal The construction of a bungalow with an attached garage 

Applicant Mr J P Steeples 

Town/Parish Council DURRINGTON 

Ward DURRINGTON AND LARKHILL 

Grid Ref 415374  144363 

Type of application Outline planning permission with all matters reserved.  

Case Officer  Steven Banks 

 
Reason for the application being considered by Committee  
 
Cllr Graham Wright has requested the consideration of the above application at a Planning 
Committee, if the Case Officer’s recommendation is to conditionally approve the application, 
due to public interest and the consideration that the proposal would represent the 
overdevelopment of the site and would, by reason of its positioning, change the building line 
and symmetry of the close.      
 
The Case Officer has recommended the conditional approval of the application and therefore 
the application is to be considered by a Planning Committee.     
 
1. Purpose of Report 
 
To consider the above application and the recommendation of the Area Development 
Manager that permission be granted subject to conditions for the reasons detailed below. 
 
2. Report Summary 
 
The main considerations which are considered to be material in the determination of this 

application are listed below: 

1. The principle of development 
2. The impact that the proposal would have on the amenity of the occupiers of the 

properties nearest to the proposal 

Page 119

Agenda Item 8b



3. The impact that the proposal would have on the character and appearance of the area 
surrounding the proposal site 

4. The impact that the proposal would have on highway safety 
5. Financial contributions towards the provision of recreational open space  
 
8 objections from third parties have been received. The Parish Council object to the 
proposal. 
 
3. Site Description 
 
The proposal site lies within the Durrington Housing Policy Boundary and is located on the 
eastern side of Westfield Close in Durrington.  Westfield Close is characterised by single 
storey detached dwellings, two storey semi detached dwellings, single storey semi detached 
dwellings and 1.5 storey semi detached dwellings.  The external walls of the dwellings in the 
area surrounding the proposal site have been constructed out of red brick, tiles, cream 
render and buff brick.  The external roofs of the dwellings in the area surrounding the 
proposal site have been constructed out of red tiles.  The proposal site currently functions as 
part of the garden which serves the property.  The topography of the site is relatively flat.  
The boundary between the proposal site and Westfield Road is marked by established trees 
which are set behind a low wall and a hedge and close boarded wooden fencing forms the 
boundary between the proposal site and the property to the south east.       
 
4. Planning History 
 
None 
 

 

5.The Proposal 
 
In this application for outline planning permission with all matters reserved it is proposed to 
construct one 2 bed bungalow with an attached garage, remove existing trees and retain an 
existing boundary hedge.          
 
6. Planning Policy 
 
The following planning policies are considered to be relevant to the determination of this 
application. 
 
National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) 2012: 
 
This Framework sets out the Government’s planning policies for England.  The Framework 
repeats that planning law requires that applications for planning permission must be 
determined in accordance with the development plan unless material considerations indicate 
otherwise.   
 
Part 6 of the NPPF, delivering a wide choice of high quality homes, is considered to be 
particularly relevant to this application.     
 
The following policies are relevant to the determination of this application and are considered 
to align with the principles, aims, objectives and intentions of the NPPF.  The following 
policies are therefore considered to carry significant weight.   
 
Salisbury District Local Plan saved policies (which are ‘saved’ policies of the adopted 
South Wiltshire Core Strategy): 
 
H16:  Housing Policy Boundaries 

Page 120



G1:  Principles of sustainable development 
G2:  General criteria for development 
R2:  Open space provision 
D2:  Infill development 
TR11:  The provision of off street car parking spaces 
 
Wiltshire Local Transport Plan 2011 - 2026 Car Parking Strategy 
 
7.Consultations 
 
Durrington Town Council, - considered that the proposal would represent overdevelopment 
which, by reason of its positioning in front of the building line, would be out of character with 
the area and objected to the proposal.  
 
Wiltshire Council Archaeologist, - considered it unlikely that significant archaeological 
remains would be disturbed by the proposed development and did not raise any objections 
to the proposal.  
 
Wessex Water, - considered that new water supply and waste water connections would be 
required from Wessex Water to serve the proposed development and did not raise any 
objections to the proposal. 
 
Highways Officer - considered that the proposal would not harm highway safety and did not 
raise any objections to the proposal subject to the imposition of two conditions, relating to 
the consolidation of surfacing of the access and a scheme for the discharge of water, on any 
planning permission. 
 
8.Publicity 
 
Eight statements of objection to the proposal have been received. 

In summary the grounds of the objections related to the considerations that:   
 

• The proposal, by reason of its positioning, would harm the character of the area;  

• the proposal, by reason of the views which would be possible from openings, would 
result in a harmful increase in the overlooking of nearby properties which would harm 
the amenity of the occupiers of nearby properties;  

• the proposal, by reason of it being detached, would be out of character with the 
neighbouring properties;  

• the proposal would result in an increase in housing density which would harm the 
character of the area;  

• the parking of additional vehicles, associated with the proposed development, on the 
highway would harm highway safety;  

• future alterations to the proposal, if it was approved, would harm visual and 
residential amenity; the proposal would damage tree roots;  

• the drainage system may not have the capacity to cope with the additional liquid; the 
loss of trees would harm the appearance of the area;  

• the proposal would decrease the value of a neighbouring property; the proposal 
would not have adequate amenity space and that the dwelling would appear 
cramped and harm the character  of the area.         

 
9. Planning Considerations 
 
9.1The principle of development: 

Page 121



Policy H16 permits small scale development within certain Housing Policy Boundaries, 
including the Housing Policy Boundary of Durrington, subject to the proposed development 
not conflicting with the policies of the Local Plan.   
 
Therefore, policy H16 accepts the principle of development within certain Housing Policy 
Boundaries subject to the development not conflicting with the policies of the Local Plan.     
 
It is proposed to construct one 2 bed bungalow with an attached garage.  The proposed 
works are considered to constitute small scale development.  The proposal falls within the 
Housing Policy Boundary of Durrington.  Therefore, due to the location of the proposal and 
the type of work proposed, the principle of development is accepted subject to the proposal 
not conflicting with the policies of the Local Plan.   
 
The following parts of this report assess the proposal against the relevant policies of the 
Local Plan. 
 
9.2The impact on the amenity of adjacent properties. 

 
This application is for outline planning permission with all matters, which include access, 
appearance, landscaping, layout and design, reserved for consideration through a separate 
application for the approval of the reserved matters, should permission be granted.  
However, the positioning and footprint of the dwelling is shown in an indicative plan which 
has been submitted as part of this application.  It is also indicated that the dwelling would 
comprise of one single storey. 
 
It is considered that a single storey dwelling with an attached garage, of the size indicated 
and in the position indicated, by reason of its size in terms of its height, width and depth, and 
the separation distance between the structure and the nearest properties, would not result in 
an unduly harmful increase in any overshadowing or overbearing effect which would be to 
the detriment of the occupiers of the nearest properties.     
 
The amenity of the occupiers of the properties which are nearest to the proposal would not 
be harmed through a significant increase in any overlooking resulting from the proposed 
development, provided that any windows would be on the ground floor only. 
 
Whilst the resultant property would have a very modest garden area, there is no national 
standard for garden sizes, and given a bungalow is proposed, it would be difficult to justify a 
refusal of the scheme on the limited size of the planned residential curtilage. 
  
It is consequently considered that the proposed scheme, as indicated, would be achievable 

without harming the amenity of the occupiers of nearby properties. The proposal is therefore 

considered to be in accordance with criterion (vi) of policy G2. 

9.3The impact on the character and appearance of the area surrounding the proposal 
site: 
 
As stated above, this application is for outline planning permission with all matters, which 
include access, appearance, landscaping, layout and design, reserved for consideration 
through a separate application for the approval of the reserved matters, should permission 
be granted.  However, the positioning and footprint of the dwelling and attached garage is 
shown in an indicative plan which has been submitted as part of this application.  It is also 
indicated that the dwelling and attached garage would comprise of one single storey and that 
the existing hedge and low wall would be retained.     
 

Page 122



The indicative plan shows that the proposed dwelling would be sited in a position which is 
forward of the building line of the property to the north east.  The siting of dwellings in 
positions which are forward of strongly defined building lines is not encouraged where the 
dwellings would appear to be out of character with an important characteristic of the area.  
However, the building line in Westfield Close is not strongly defined and it is considered that 
the positioning of the proposed dwelling would not appear to be severely out of character 
with the loosely defined building line of Westfield Close.   
 
It is considered that the retention of the boundary hedge and low wall would provide an 
element of screening of views of the proposed single storey dwelling from the public 
highway, thus reducing the impact that the proposal would have on the character and 
appearance of the area concerned.  
 
Single storey and two storey dwellings characterise the area concerned.  It is considered 
that the a single storey dwelling of the size indicated, by reason of its height, width and 
depth, would not be excessive in terms of its size and would not be out of scale with the 
existing structures in the surrounding area.  It is therefore considered that a single storey 
dwelling of the size indicated would not undermine the character of the area sufficiently to 
warrant refusal.   
 
It is further considered that the proposal site is of a size which could accommodate a 
dwelling of an appropriate scale.  It is also considered that the construction of a well 
designed dwelling, which used materials of a reasonable quality, on the proposal site would 
not harm local character and identity.   
 
It is, therefore, considered that the indicated size and positioning of the proposed dwelling 
would not detract from the character and appearance of the area concerned.  In order to 
ensure that the building is of single storey construction only and of the footprint indicated 
only the imposition of appropriate conditions on any permission is recommended.    
 
The proposal is therefore considered to be in accordance with criterion (iv) of policy G2 and 
policy D2. 
 
9.4The impact on highway safety: 
 
As stated above, this application is for outline planning permission with all matters, which 
include access, appearance, landscaping, layout and design, reserved for consideration 
through a separate application for the approval of the reserved matters, should permission 
be granted.  However, the positioning and footprint of the dwelling is shown in an indicative 
plan which has been submitted as part of this application.    
 
The Highways Officer, did not object to the proposal on the grounds of the proposal site not 
being able to provide a satisfactory access, turning space and level of off street parking.       

 
It is consequently considered that the proposed scheme would be achievable without 
harming highway safety. 
 
The proposal is therefore considered to be in accordance with criterion (i) of policy G2, policy 
TR11 and the Wiltshire Local Transport Plan 2011 - 2026 Car Parking Strategy. 
 
9.5 Financial contributions  
 
On proposal sites where residential development is proposed, a financial contribution, under 
policy R2, is sought towards the provision of recreational open space.  Section 106 
agreements are entered into when applicants are willing to comply with the requirements of 

Page 123



policy R2.  Due to the proposal being considered at a Committee meeting, it is not 
considered prudent to enter into a Section 106 agreement.  If this application is conditionally 
approved at a committee meeting it is recommended that the applicant should be required to 
enter into a section 106 agreement in order to comply with the requirements of policy R2.    
 
Whilst Policy CP3 of the SWCS indicates that a financial payment is required towards 
affordable housing, the revised draft policy within the WCS does not require a payment for 
single dwellings. As this is the direction of travel of Council policy, it has been decided that 
no payment is therefore required towards affordable housing in this instance. 
 
10.Conclusion 
 
The principle of the construction of a dwelling on the proposal site is accepted and despite 
the small size of the site, on balance, it is considered that the proposed scheme would be 
achievable without harming the amenity of the occupiers of nearby properties, highway 
safety and the character of the area.  Consequently, a refusal of the scheme may be difficult 
to justify. 
 
11.RECOMMENDATION 
 
Planning permission be GRANTED subject to the following conditions and the 
applicant entering into a section 106 agreement in order to comply with the 
requirements of policy R2: 
 
1.The development hereby permitted shall be begun either before the expiration of three 
years from the date of this permission, or before the expiration of two years from the date of 
approval of the last of the reserved matters to be approved, whichever is the later. 

 
Reason:  To comply with the provisions of Section 92 of the Town and Country Planning Act 
1990 as amended by the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004. 
 
2.No development shall commence on site until details of the following matters (in respect of 
which approval is expressly reserved) have been submitted to, and approved in writing by, 
the Local Planning Authority:  

 
(a) The scale of the development; 
(b) The layout of the development; 
(c) The external appearance of the development; 
(d) The landscaping of the site; 
(e) The means of access to the site. 

 
The development shall be carried out in accordance with the approved details. 
 
Reason:  The application was made for outline planning permission and is granted to comply 
with the provisions of Section 92 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 and Article 3(1) 
of the Town and Country Planning (General Development Procedure) Order 1995. 
 
3.An application for the approval of all of the reserved matters shall be made to the Local 
Planning Authority before the expiration of three years from the date of this permission. 

 
Reason:  To comply with the provisions of Section 92 of the Town and Country Planning Act 
1990.  
 

Page 124



4.  The building hereby permitted shall be of single storey construction only (with no dormer 
windows or other windows above eaves level), and the footprint of the dwelling shall not 
exceed that shown on the indicative site plan.  

  
Reason:  In the interests of visual amenity. 
 
5.No development shall commence on site until details and samples of the materials to be 
used for the external walls and roofs have been submitted to and approved in writing by the 
Local Planning Authority.  Development shall be carried out in accordance with the approved 
details. 
  
Reason:  In the interests of visual amenity and the character and appearance of the area. 
 
6. No delivery of plant, equipment, materials, demolition or construction work or other 
building activity shall take place on Sundays or public holidays or outside the hours of 0800 
& 1800 Monday to Friday and 0800 & 1300 on Saturdays. 
 
Reason:  In the interests of residential amenity 
 
7. The highway kerbs and paved footway shall be lowered across the parking area access.   
 
Reason:  In the interests of highway safety. 
 
8. Any gates shall be set back 4.5 metres from the edge of the carriageway, such gates to 
open inwards only. 
 
Reason:  In the interests of highway safety. 
 
9. No development shall commence on site until a scheme of hard and soft landscaping has 
been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The development 
shall be carried out in accordance with the approved scheme. 
 
 
10. The development hereby permitted shall not be first brought into occupied until the first 
five metres of the access, measured from the edge of the carriageway, has been 
consolidated and surfaced (not loose stone or gravel).  The access shall be maintained as 
such thereafter. 
 
Reason:  In the interests of highway safety. 
 
11. No development shall commence on site until details of the proposed ground floor slab 
levels have been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.  The 
development shall be carried out in accordance with the approved levels details. 

 
Reason:  In the interests of visual amenity. 
 
12. No development shall commence on site until a scheme for the discharge of surface 
water from the site (including surface water from the access/driveway), incorporating 
sustainable drainage details, has been submitted to and approved in writing by the local 
planning authority.  The development shall not be first occupied until surface water drainage 
has been constructed in accordance with the approved scheme. 
 
Reason:  To ensure that the development can be adequately drained. 
 
14. The building hereby permitted shall be of the footprint indicated only. 

Page 125



 
Reason:  In the interests of visual amenity. 
 
15. The development shall be carried out in complete accordance with the following 
drawings: 
 
Location plan:  Date drawn:  03/06/2014  Date received by Wiltshire Council:  14/08/2014  
 
Reason:  For the avoidance of doubt. 
 
 
Informative: 
 
1.Water supply and waste connections 
 
New water supply and waste water connections will be required from Wessex Water to serve 
this proposed development.  Application forms and guidance information is available from 
the Developer Services web-pages at www.wessexwater.co.uk/developerservices 
 
Please note that all sewer connections serving more than a single dwelling require a single 
adoption agreement with Wessex Water before the connection can be made.   
 
Further information can be obtained from Wessex Water's New Connections Team by 
telephoning 01225 526222 for Water Supply and 01225 526333 for Waste Water. 
  
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 126



 

 

14/07720/OUT - 3 Westfield Close, Durrington, SP4 8BY 

 

 

 

 

Page 127



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 128



REPORT TO THE AREA PLANNING COMMITTEE Report No. 

Date of Meeting 06 November 2014 

Application Number 14/07911/FUL 

Site Address 15 Ridgmount 

Durrington 

Salisbury 

Wiltshire 

SP4 8AH 

Proposal The construction of a 1.5 storey extension on the west elevation 

of the dwelling and the insertion of three dormer windows in the 

eastern roof slope of the dwelling.  

Applicant Sally Rhind-Tutt 

Town/Parish Council DURRINGTON 

Ward DURRINGTON AND LARKHILL 

Grid Ref 415660  144703 

Type of application Full Planning 

Case Officer  Steven Banks 

 
Reason for the application being considered by Committee  
 
Cllr Graham Wright has requested the consideration of the above application at a Planning 
Committee, if the Case Officer’s recommendation is to conditionally approve the application, 
due to public concern and the consideration that the design of the window serving the first 
floor of the extension would harm the character of the surrounding area.   
 
The Case Officer has recommended the conditional approval of the application and therefore 
the application is to be considered by a Planning Committee.     
 
1. Purpose of Report 
 
To recommend that the application be approved subject to conditions. 
 
2. Report Summary 
 
The main considerations which are considered to be material in the determination of this 
application are listed below: 
 
1.The principle of development 
2.The impact that the proposal would have on the character and appearance of the building 
and the surrounding area  

Page 129

Agenda Item 8c



3.The impact that the proposal would have on the amenity of the occupiers of the nearest 
properties 
 
3. Site Description 
 
The proposal site lies within the Durrington Housing Policy Boundary, is within close 
proximity to the Durrington Conservation Area and is located on the western side of 
Ridgemount in Durrington.  Ridgemount is characterised by detached residential properties, 
of which many have 1.5 stories.  It should be noted that dormer windows can also be found 
in Ridgemount.  The proposal site accommodates a detached 1.5 storey dwelling.  The 
external walls of the dwelling have been constructed out of cream render and red brick and 
the external roof of the dwelling has been constructed out of red tiles.  The rear of the site is 
enclosed by a wall and fencing and the front of the site is relatively open.     
 
4. Planning History 
 
S/2003/0333 
 

BRICKBUILT CAR PORT AND GARDEN WALL AND ALTERATION TO 
ACCESS 

S/2001/0366 REPLACEMENT OF FLAT ROOFS WITH PITCHED TO INCORPORATE 
LOFT CONVERSION PLUS INTERNAL ALTERATIONS 

S/2003/0768 RAISING ROOF TO PROVIDE NEW FIRST FLOOR 
ACCOMMODATION INCLUDING DORMER WINDOWS 

S/2002/1099 FIRST FLOOR BEDROOM EXTENSION ON EXISTING FLAT ROOFED 
KITCHEN 

S/2007/1129 PROPOSED BOUNDARY WALL. PROPOSED STORE/GYM 

S/2005/1338 PROPOSED SINGLE STOREY SIDE EXTENSION 

S/2001/2172 EXTENSION TO KITCHEN AND DEMOLITION OF REAR PORCH 

 
5. The Proposal 
 
Planning permission is sought for the construction of a 1.5 storey extension on the west 
elevation of the dwelling and the insertion of three dormer windows in the eastern roof slope 
of the dwelling. 
 
6. Planning Policy 
 
The following planning policies are considered to be relevant to the determination of this 
application. 
 
National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) 2012: 
 
This Framework sets out the Government’s planning policies for England.  The Framework 
repeats that planning law requires that applications for planning permission must be 
determined in accordance with the development plan unless material considerations indicate 
otherwise.  The Framework replaced the previously published Planning Policy Statements 
(PPSs) and Planning Policy Guidance notes (PPGs). 
 
Salisbury District Local Plan saved policies (which are ‘saved’ policies of the adopted 
South Wiltshire Core Strategy): 
 
The following saved policies are relevant to the determination of this application and are 
considered to align with the principles, aims, objectives and intentions of the NPPF.  The 
following policies are therefore considered to carry significant weight.   

Page 130



 
H16:  Housing Policy Boundaries 
G2:  General criteria for development 
D3:  Extensions 
 
7. Consultations 
 
Durrington Town Council, - considered that the first floor window in the west elevation of the 
proposed extension, by reason of its appearance, would harm the character of the 
surrounding area and would harm views from the Conservation Area and objected to the 
proposal.    
 
Conservation Officer, - considered that the proposed works would not detract from the 
character and appearance of the host dwelling and would not form a prominent part of any 
significant view from the Conservation Area.   
 
8. Publicity 
 
This application was advertised through the use of a site notice and letters of consultation. 
 
Two statements, expressing concerns, from occupiers of Apple Tree Cottage 34 High Street 
Durrington and 32 High Street Durrington have been received. 
 
In summary the grounds of the concerns related to the considerations that the first floor 

window in the west elevation of the proposed extension, by reason of its design, size and 

positioning, would harm the character of the surrounding area, would harm views from the 

Conservation Area, would result in a harmful increase in the overlooking of properties and 

would result in light pollution. 

9. Planning Considerations 
 
9.1The principle of development: 
 
Policy H16 permits small scale development within certain Housing Policy Boundaries, 
including the Housing Policy Boundary of Durrington, subject to the proposed development 
not conflicting with the policies of the Local Plan.   
 
Therefore, policy H16 accepts the principle of development within certain Housing Policy 
Boundaries subject to the development not conflicting with the policies of the Local Plan.     
 
It is proposed to construct a 1.5 storey extension on the west elevation of the dwelling and to 
insert three dormer windows in the eastern roof slope of the dwelling.  The proposed works 
are considered to constitute small scale development.  The proposal falls within the Housing 
Policy Boundary of Durrington.  Therefore, due to the location of the proposal and the type of 
work proposed, the principle of development is accepted subject to the proposal not 
conflicting with the policies of the Local Plan.   
 
The following parts of this report assess the proposal against the relevant policies of the 
Local Plan. 
 
9.2The impact on the character and appearance of the building and the surrounding 
area 
 
 

Page 131



Policy D3 permits extensions to existing properties or the development of ancillary buildings 
within their curtilages subject to the works being compatible with the existing property, the 
street scene and the landscape framework and criteria (iv) of policy G2 requires new 
development to respect the physical environment. 
 
It is proposed to construct the external surfaces of the walls of the proposal out of render 
and brick.  It is proposed to construct the external surfaces of the roofs of the proposal out of 
concrete tiles.  It is considered that these materials would be compatible with the materials 
which have been used to construct the host dwelling.  Due to the compatibility of the 
materials it is considered that the proposed materials would not detract from the overall 
character and appearance of the property and, in turn would not detract from the character 
of the surrounding area.   
 
It is proposed to locate the extension on the rear elevation of the dwelling.  In this location, 
the extension would not form a prominent part of the street scene.  It is therefore considered 
that the proposed extension would not harm the appearance of the street scene.  It is 
proposed to construct three dormer windows in the eastern roof slope of the dwelling.  It 
should be noted that this roof slope faces the public highway.  Dormer windows can be 
found in the roofs of dwellings in the area surrounding the proposal site.  A certain precedent 
which accepts the construction of dormer windows in the area surrounding the proposal site 
has therefore been set.  It is consequently considered that the construction of the proposed 
dormer windows in the eastern roof slope of the host dwelling would not detract from the 
appearance of the street scene through the introduction of an alien feature. 
 
In terms of height, width and depth the proposed extension and dormer windows would be 
subservient to the principle building.  This subordinate design would not harm the 
appearance of the property.   
 
It is considered that the design of the proposed extension and dormer windows follows 
established principles of development which characterise the area surrounding the proposal 
site.  It is consequently considered that the design of the proposed extension and dormer 
windows would not detract from the overall character and appearance of the property and, in 
turn, would not undermine the character of the area.  
 
Consequently, it is considered that the proposed extension and dormer windows, by virtue of 
their design, size, positioning and materials, would be compatible with the host building and, 
in turn, would not harm local character and identity.  The proposal is therefore considered to 
be in accordance with policies G2 and D3.  
 
9.3The impact on the amenity of the occupiers of the adjacent properties 
 
The dwelling is located in a relatively tight knit housing area, where there is already a level of 
overlooking between properties and garden areas.  
 
The proposal involves a two storey rear extension, which would have a large glazed window 
at first floor level. Third parties have expressed concern regards the impact of the works on 
privacy levels of adjacent properties.  
 
It is acknowledged that oblique views of adjacent property, to the north and south of the 
proposal site would be possible from the proposed extension.  The distance to “April Rise”  
and the proposed extension is approximately 37m, the distance between Cherry Tree 
Cottage (32 High Street) and the proposed extension is approximately 30m and the distance 
between Apple Tree Cottage (34 High Street) and the proposed extension is approximately 
34m. However, associated garden areas between the properties are obviously closer to the 
extension and first floor window than the distances above.    

Page 132



 
Some landscape screening between these properties was evident at the time of the site visit. 
As a consequence, whilst there may be some inter-relationship between adjacent properties 
and the proposed rear extension, given the distance between properties, it is considered that 
the amenity of the occupiers of the properties which are nearest to the proposal would not be 
so significantly harmed through a significant increase in any overlooking resulting from the 
proposed development to warrant refusal.   
 
Notwithstanding the impact of the extension in terms of overlooking, the proposed rear 
extension, by reason of its size, in terms of their height, width and depth, and the separation 
distance between the structures and the nearest properties, would not result in an unduly 
harmful increase in any overshadowing or overbearing effect which would be so significant 
as to warrant refusal.  
 
The proposed dormer windows in the front roofslope facing the street scene are not 
considered to be an issue in planning terms. 
 
The proposal is therefore considered to be in accordance with policy G2. 
 
10. Conclusion 
 
The proposal may result in some additional inter-relationship between the proposed rear 
extension and adjacent dwellings to the west. However, given the distance between the 
properties, it is considered that any additional loss of privacy would not be so harmful as to 
warrant refusal on that basis. 
 
The development would be compatible with the main dwelling and, in turn, would respect the 
character of the locality.  It is also considered that the proposed structures would not cause 
any demonstrable harm to the amenity of the occupiers of nearby properties.  The proposal 
is therefore considered to be in accordance with the aims and objectives of policies G2, D3 
and H16. 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
Planning permission be GRANTED subject to the following conditions: 
 
1.The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of three years 
from the date of this permission. 

 
Reason:  To comply with the provisions of Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 
1990, as amended by the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004. 
 
2.No development shall commence on site until details and samples of the materials to be 
used for the external walls and roofs have been submitted to and approved in writing by the 
Local Planning Authority.  Development shall be carried out in accordance with the approved 
details. 
  
Reason:  In the interests of visual amenity and the character and appearance of the area. 
 
3.The development shall be carried out in complete accordance with the following drawings: 
 
Drawing reference:  2014-27-3  revision:  A  Date drawn:  08/2014  Date received by 
Wiltshire Council:  20/08/2014  
 

Page 133



Drawing reference:  2014-27-4  Date drawn:  08/2014  Date received by Wiltshire Council:  
15/08/2014  
 
Drawing reference:  2014-27-5  Date drawn:  08/2014  Date received by Wiltshire Council:  
15/08/2014  
 
Reason:  For the avoidance of doubt. 
 

 

 

 
  

  

 
 
 

Page 134



 

 

14/07911/FUL - 15 Ridgmount, Durrington, SP4 8AH 

 

 

 

 

Page 135



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 136


	Agenda
	2 Minutes
	6 Rights of Way Modification Order
	CM09591 App1
	CM09591 App1A
	CM09591 App1B
	CM09591 App1C
	CM09591 App2
	CM09591 App3

	7 Planning Appeals
	8a 13/05402/FUL - Harnham Telephone Repeater Station
	1305402FUL - MAP

	8b 14/07720/OUT - 3 Westfield Close, Durrington, SP4 8BY
	14_07720_OUT

	8c 14/07911/FUL - 15 Ridgmount, Durrington, SP4 8AH
	14_07911_FUL


